clerks@guamlegislature.org

From: Committee on Rules 36GL <cor@guamlegislature.org>
Sent: Friday, March 4, 2022 9:18 AM

To: Clerks; Rennae Meno

Cc: Speaker Therese M. Terlaje

Subject: Messages and Communications for Doc. No. 36GL-22-1717*
Attachments: 36GL-22-1717.pdf

Hafa Adai Clerks,

Please see attached M&C Doc. No. 36GL-22-1717 for processing:

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 2022-05: Relative to Amending Social Gathering

36GL-22-1717 Restrictions*

Office of the Governor of

Si Yu'os Ma'ase’,

B COMMITTEE ON RULES

Vice Speaker Tina Rose Mufia Barnes

36th Guam Legislature

I Mina'trentai Sais Na Liheslaturan Guahan
163 Chalan Santo Papa Hagatfia Guam 96910
Email: cor@guamlegislature.org

"Disclaimer: This message is intended only for the use of the individual or entity to which it is addressed and may contain information
which is privileged, confidential, proprietary, or exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If you are not the intended recipient or
the individual responsible for delivering the message to the intended recipient, you are strictly prohibited from disclosing, distributing,
copying, or in any way using this message. If you have received this communication in error, please notify the sender and immediately
delete any copies you may have received. Thank you."

---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: Speaker Therese M. Terlaje <speaker@guamlegislature.org>

Date: Thu, Mar 3, 2022 at 5:22 PM

Subject: Messages and Communications for 36GL-22-1717

To: Legislative Secretary Amanda Shelton <officeofsenatorshelton@guamlegislature.org>, Committee on Rules 36GL
<cor@guamlegislature.org>

Hafa Adai,

Please see attached M&C Doc. No. 36GL-22-1717.

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 2022-05: Relative to Amending Social Gathering

36GL-22-1717 Restrictions.

Office of the Governor of

Si Yu'os Ma'ase’,

Doc. No. 36GL-22-1717.*



Maria Abante
Legislative Assistant

Office of Speaker Therese M. Terlaje

Committee on Health, Land, Justice and Culture
I Mina'trentai Sais na Liheslaturan Guahan

36th Guam Legislature

Address: Guam Congress Building, 163 Chalan Santo Papa, Hagatfia, Guam 96910
T:(671) 472-3586  F: (671) 989-3590 Email: speaker@guamlegislature.org
website: www.senatorterlaje.com

---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: <june.borja@guam.gov>

Date: Thu, Mar 3, 2022 at 5:06 PM

Subject: EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 2022-05: Relative to Amending Social Gathering Restrictions

To: <speaker@guamlegislature.org>

Cc: GOVERNOR Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero <governor@guam.gov>, LT. GOVERNOR Joshua F. Tenorio
<lt.governor@guam.gov>, Guam Compiler of Laws <guamcompiler@gmail.com>, <gcepeda@guamcourts.gov>,
<libanez@guamcourts.gov>, <legal@guam.gov>, CHIEF OF STAFF Jon Junior Calvo <jon.calvo@guam.gov>, DEPUTY COS
Alice Taijeron <alice.taijeron@guam.gov>, Bertha Duenas <bertha.duenas@guam.gov>, Stephanie G. Flores
<stephanie.flores@guam.gov>, Lester Carlson <lester.carlson@bbmr.guam.gov>, Jessica Cruz <jessica.cruz@guam.gov>,
Eliza G. Dames <eliza.dames@guam.gov>, Shamra L.A. Chargualaf <shamra.chargualaf@guam.gov>, Josephine C.
Cepeda <josephine.cepeda@guam.gov>, Kathleen C. Cepeda <kathleen.cepeda@guam.gov>, Richard B. Arroyo
<richard.arroyo@guam.gov>, Rhea Chang <rhea.chang@guam.gov>, Krystal Paco-San Agustin
<krystal.paco@guam.gov>, Analyn Eustaquio <analyn.eustaquio@bbmr.guam.gov>, <admin@bbmr.guam.gov>, Michael
D. Weakley <michael.weakley@guam.gov>, <pmblas@ggrf.com>, Jacqueline M. Blas <jmblas@ggrf.com>, Jennifer
Louise Dulla <jennifer.dulla@guam.gov>, Jean S. Taitano <jean.taitano@guam.gov>, <rikki.orsini@guam.gov>,
<logan.reyes@guam.gov>

Hafa Adai Madame Speaker,

Please find attached copy of letter dated March 3, 2022 from | Maga’hdgan Guahan’s Legal Counsel Jeffrey A. Moots with
enclosed Executive Order No. 2022-05:

e EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 2022-05: Relative to Amending Social Gathering Restrictions

A hard copy will be transmitted to your office tomorrow, March 4, 2022.

Thank you.

Doc. No. 36GL-22-1717.*



Respectfully,

June M.C. Borja

Administrative Services Officer

OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR OF GUAM
Office of Legal Counsel

Ricardo J. Bordallo Governor's Complex
Adelup, Guam 96910

P.O. Box 2950, Hagétﬁa, Guam 96932

Office No.: (671) 473-1118

Fax No.: (671) 477-4826

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This email and any files transmitted with it may be legally privileged and confidential and are intended solely for
the use of the individual or entity above. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any view, dissemination or copying of this
email, or taking any action in reliance on the contents of this information is strictly prohibited. If you received this transmission in error, please
notify us immediately by e-mail or telephone to arrange for the return of this email and any files to us or to verify it has been deleted from your

system.

Doc. No. 36GL-22-1717.*



Speaker Therese M. Terlaje <speaker@guamiegisiature.org>

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 2022-05: Relative to Amending Social Gathering
Restrictions

june.borja@guam.gov <june.borja@guam.gov> Thu, Mar 3, 2022 at 5:00 PM
To: speaker@guamlegislature.org

Cc: "GOVERNOR Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero” <governor@guam.gov>, "LT. GOVERNOR Joshua F. Tenorio”
<lt.governor@guam.gov>, Guam Compiler of Laws <guamcompiler@gmail.com>, geepeda@guamcourts.gov,
libanez@guamcourts.gov, legal@guam.gov, CHIEF OF STAFF Jon Junior Calvo <jon.calvo@guam.gov>, DEPUTY COS
Alice Taijeron <alice.taijeron@guam.gov>, Bertha Duenas <bertha.duenas@guam.gov>, "Stephanie G. Flores"
<stephanie.flores@guam.gov>, Lester Carlson <lester.carlson@bbmr.guam.gov>, Jessica Cruz <jessica.cruz@guam.gov>,
“Eliza G. Dames” <eliza.dames@guam.gov>, "Shamra L.A. Chargualaf® <shamra.chargualaf@guam.gov>, "Josephine C.
Cepeda” <josephine.cepeda@guam.gov>, "Kathleen C. Cepeda” <kathleen.cepeda@guam.gov>, "Richard B. Arroyo"
<richard.arroyo@guam.gov>, Rhea Chang <rhea.chang@guam.gov>, Krystal Paco-San Agustin <krystal.paco@guam.gov>,
Analyn Eustaquio <analyn.eustaquio@bbmr.guam.gov>, admin@bbmr.guam.gov, "Michael D. Weakley"
<michael.weakley@guam.gov>, pmblas@ggrf.com, "Jacqueline M. Blas" <jmblas@ggrf.com>, Jennifer Louise Dulla
<jennifer.dulla@guam.gov>, "Jean S. Taitano" <jean.taitano@guam.gov>, rikki.orsini@guam.gov, logan.reyes@guam.gov

Hafa Adai Madame Speaker,

Please find attached copy of letter dated March 3, 2022 from / Maga'hagan Guahan's Legal Counsel Jeffrey A. Moots
with enclosed Executive Order No. 2022-05:

« EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 2022-05: Relative to Amending Social Gathering Restrictions

A hard copy will be transmitted to your office tomorrow, March 4, 2022,

Thank you.
COMMITTEE ON RULES
RECEIVED: Doc Type: 3@6 L-22-\ 7”
Respectfully, March 3, 2022 OFFICE OF THE SPEAKER

522 P.M. THERESE M. TERLAJE
June M.C. Borja
Administrative Services Officer
OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR OF GUAM
Office of Legal Counsel ) S 00
Ricardo J. Bordallo Governor's Complex Time:
Adelup, Guam 96910 Receivedﬁ&zﬂ
P.O. Box 2950, Hagétfia, Guam 96932
Office No.: (671) 473-1118
Fax No.: (671) 477-4826

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This email and any files transmitted with it may be legally privileged and confidential and are intended solely
for the use of the individual or entity above. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any view, dissemination or
copying of this email, or taking any action in reliance on the contents of this information is strictly prohibited. If you received this transmission
in error, please notify us immediately by e-mail or telephone to arrange for the return of this email and any files to us or to verify it has been
deleted from your system.

7] Executive Order No. 2022-05 - Relative to Amending Social Gathering Restrictions.pdf

Doc. No. 36GL-22-1717.*



LOURDES A. LEON GUERRERO JOSHUA E. TENORIO
GOVERNOR LT. GOVERNOR
UFISINAN I MAGAHAGAN GUAHAN
OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR OF GUAM
Via Hand Delivery

and E-mail: speaker@guamlegislature.org
March 3, 2022

HONORABLE THERESE M. TERLAJE, Speaker
I Mina’trentai Sais Na Liheslaturan Gudhan

36" Guam Legislature

Guam Congress Building

163 Chalan Santo Papa

Hagatiia, Guam 96910

RE: EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 2022-05

Hafa Adai Madame Speaker:
Pursuant to Public Law 34-16, transmitted herewith is the following Executive Order:

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 2022-05: RELATIVE TO
AMENDING SOCIAL GATHERING RESTRICTIONS

Thank you.

Senseremente,

(1 W

JEFFREY A. MOOTS
Legal Counsel

Enclosure: Executive Order No. 2022-05

cc via email: Maga hdagan Guahan
Sigundo Maga’lahen Gudhan
Hon. F. Philip Carbullido, Chief Justice of Guam
Compiler of Law
Central Files
Cabinet Members

RICARDO J. BORDALLO GOVERNOR’S COMPLEX
513 W. Marine Corps Drive Hagatiia, Guam 96910

QOVermnor.gyar, 3euL L porh 472-8931



ISLAND OF GUAM

OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR
HAGATNA, GUAM 96932
U.S.A.

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 2022-05

RELATIVE TO AMENDING SOCIAL
GATHERING RESTRICTIONS

WHEREAS, on March 14, 2020, pursuant to the Organic Act of Guam and the laws of
Guam, I declared a public health emergency on Guam due to dangers posed by the 2019
novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”); and

WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, President Donald Trump issued a corresponding
proclamation declaring a national emergency concerning COVID-19; and

- WHEREAS, mindful of our limited healthcare resources in Guam, as well as the particular
comorbidities that are prevalent in our community, with the support of the Physicians
Advisory Board and the Guam National Guard Surgeon Cell, and in coordination with the
Department of Public Health and Social Services (“DPHSS”), I immediately implemented
a policy by which restrictions were set and adjusted in response to measurable COVID-19
metrics based on available U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (“CDC”)
guidance, initially including daily new cases, test positivity rate, retransmission rate, and
ultimately including our vaccination rate; and

WHEREAS, as new variants emerged, surged, and eventually subsided, our primary
concern has always been, and continues to be, ensuring the continued viability of our
healthcare system, so that our hospitals are able to treat all patients without resorting to
crisis standards of care; and

WHEREAS, scientific data indicates that certain activities expose their participants to
greater degrees of risk of transmission than others, and the DPHSS and I have periodically
adjusted COVID-19 restrictions involving these activities, with the ultimate goal of
managing hospitalizations and preventing our hospitals from being overwhelmed; and

WHEREAS, on February 25, 2022, the CDC established new metrics that monitor the
transmission of COVID-19 using community level indicators, which focus on reducing
medically significant illness and minimizing strain on the healthcare system; and

WHEREAS, the CDC Community Level metrics are intended to inform community
actions and local decisions, including implementation and easing of restrictions, individual
preventive behaviors, testing strategies, and vaccine outreach; and

WHEREAS, the CDC Community Level metrics, which are consistent with established
metrics utilized here in Guam, will aid in our effort to refine our COVID-19 response
strategy to align with national standards that are predictable and uniformly applied; and

WHEREAS, as of the time of this writing, our daily new cases average two hundred
sixteen (216) positive cases and our effective retransmission value is calculated at 0.76;

and
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IsLAND OF GUAM

OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR
HAGATNA, GUAM 96932
U.S.A.

WHEREAS, thirty-three (33) patients are presently hospitalized with COVID-19 in Guam,
including three (3) in intensive care and one (1) on a ventilator; and

WHEREAS, the CDC Community Level metrics track the following items: the cumulative
7-day new COVID-19 cases per 100,000, presently 982.9 in Guam, the 7-day new hospital
admissions per 100,000, which our island currently records at 21, and the percent of staffed
inpatient beds occupied by COVID-19 patients, which presently stands at 9% locally; and

WHEREAS, based on the CDC Community Level metrics, our island’s indicators have
substantially and swiftly improved in every measurable category following the surge in
COVID-19 positive cases and hospitalizations resulting from the prevalence of the
Omicron sub-variants; and

WHEREAS, while our community has consequently resumed activities and practices
consistent with our improved indicators, based on the CDC Community Level metrics,
Guam’s level of risk remains high, and the community-level prevention strategies the CDC
recommends supports the continued implementation of specific prevention strategies based
on local factors; and

WHEREAS, consequently, while our local medical experts and epidemiologists agree that
current data supports the continued cautious and gradual lifting of local restrictions, it
continues to be critical to our COVID-19 response that we maintain common sense
mitigation measures such as continuing to implement a reasonable social gathering limit
and mask-wearing; and

WHEREAS, as part of our phased-in approach to adjusting our restrictions based on local
factors, with the advice of the Physicians Advisory Group and the Guam National Guard
Surgeon Cell, and with the concurrence of DPHSS, it is appropriate at this time to adjust
restrictions on indoor social gatherings; and

WHEREAS, the CDC Community Level metrics further underscore the important role
that vaccination serves in a community’s risk level, and consequent implementation of
prevention measures; and

WHEREAS, notwithstanding our high vaccination rate, as we continue to lift restrictions
and our community becomes increasingly mobile, it is more important than ever that
individuals who have not received their vaccinations or their boosters, do so as soon as
possible, to mitigate against the risk of infection, hospitalization, and death; and

WHEREAS, the COVID-19 pandemic remains a clear threat to our safety as a community,
and we must all continue to take common-sense precautions to protect ourselves and our
loved ones against this disease; and

WHEREAS, as our island continues to be engaged in emergency response, it is important
that we utilize our best available tools against COVID-19, including vaccines, therapeutics,
testing, and, as always, the practice of strict personal mitigation measures.
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IsLAND OF GUAM

OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR
HAGATNA, GUAM 96932
U.S.A.

NOW THEREFORE, I, LOURDES A. LEON GUERRERO, ! Maga’hdgan Gudhan,
Governor of Guam, by virtue of the authority vested in me by the Organic Act of Guam,
as amended, do hereby order:

1. SOCIAL GATHERINGS OR CONGREGATIONS. A “congregation” or
“social gathering” is a meeting for a common and singular purpose of more
than one (1) person, where the individuals are not members of a single
household. Effective at 6:00PM on March 4, 2022, social gatherings or
congregations indoors shall be increased to no more than one hundred (100)
persons, regardless of vaccination status, subject to applicable DPHSS
guidance. Outdoor gatherings shall continue to be limited to one hundred
(100) persons, regardless of vaccination status, subject to applicable DPHSS
guidance.

a. PLACES OF WORSHIP. Places of worship may continue
services, ceremonies, and operations as provided in Executive
Order No. 2021-16, but must strictly comply with requirements
provided in applicable DPHSS guidance, including mask-
wearing requirements.

2. CONTINUED MASK-WEARING REQUIREMENTS. Individuals ages
two (2) years or older are required to continue wearing masks in public,
subject to applicable DPHSS guidance.

3. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Executive Order or its application
to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect
other provisions or applications of this Order that can be given effect without
the invalid provision or application, and to this end, the provisions of this
order are severable.

4. PRIOR ORDERS REMAIN IN EFFECT. All prior Executive Orders
remain in full force and effect, except to the extent they conflict with this
Order.

SIGNED AND PROMULGATED at Hagétfia, Guam, this 3" day of March 2022.

Qe S Dusnsand

LOURDES A. LEON GUERRERO
Maga’hdagan Guahan
Attested by: Governor of Guam

OSHUA F. TENORIO
Sigundo Maga’ldhen Guahan
Lt. Governor of Guam
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